
WOLCOTT PLANNING & ZONING 

PUBLIC HEARING AND REGULAR MEETING 

WEDNESDAY, MAY 18, 2016      

TOWN COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 6:30 P.M. 

PAGE 1 of 9  

 

MINUTES 

 

PUBLIC HEARING 

 

Note:  These are summary minutes.  A tape recording of this meeting is on file in Wolcott 

Town Hall, Commission Secretary’s Office. 

 

Chairman Ray Mahoney called the Public Hearing to order at 6:31 p.m. with the Pledge of 

Allegiance and attendance was taken.   

 

Roll Call Attendance 

 

MEMBERS PRESENT: Cathe Sherman, Chris Edquist, Mike Bokon, Angelo 

                                           Mastrofrancesco, Ray Mahoney 

MEMBERS ABSENT:   None 

ALTERNATES PRESENT:  None 

ALTERNATES ABSENT:  Rich Delpier 

ALSO PRESENT: David Kalinowski, CZEO   

 

PERMIT APPLICATIONS  

 

1. #16-532 L&R Realty – Special Use Permit for a Community Residence at 159 Old 

Bound Line Rd. 

 

David Kalinowski, CZEO, said the applicants came before the Commission previously and 

withdrew as they had to get some more information.  He said we accepted it for review, 

(scheduled the public hearing), and have received comments from the Town Attorney and one 

from a non-adjoining property owner and then had them read into record, (see attached).   

 

Attorney Bruno came forward for the applicants and said he confirms Attorney Brian Tynan’s 

letter and we are filing this application under Connecticut General Statutes 8-2h, which means 

once an application is filed and the regulation has changed we will go under the old regulation. 

Atty. Bruno said C.G.S. 19-574 was in effect in 1969 and the State Legislature codified the 

public act and made it  C.G.S. 19-4g and thru the years there has been a number of changes to 

the regulation itself.  He said in 1991 it was changed to 17a-227 and basically it is the same 

statute.  He said this application is one that has to be looked at in terms of regulation 32.2.6.  

He said the house has existed since 1993 and the application for the special permit was 

approved in 1992.  He said the applicant has improved it inside since purchasing it.  He 

submitted information from the Assessors that the lot area is 1.53 acres and also information 

showing everything within 500 feet of the property.  He said the license they have was granted 

by the Dept. of Public Health and it is a higher license than the Dept. of Development Services. 

He said the Dept. of Public Health license is something that has to be renewed yearly. He said 



WOLCOTT PLANNING & ZONING 

PUBLIC HEARING AND REGULAR MEETING 

WEDNESDAY, MAY 18, 2016      

TOWN COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 6:30 P.M. 

PAGE 2 of 9  

 

Section 32.2.6(f) of the regulations provides that a special permit goes with the premises not 

with the applicant so technically the special permit still exists.  He said they are asking for 13 

residents and the old permit was 8, which was all the house could accommodate at that time. 

Atty. Bruno said there is plenty of room for everything there, (parking, transportation, etc.), and 

the people from SELF will explain in detail.  He also said they want to move the people there 

as they are losing their (current) lease.  He said as of two years ago there was 868 community 

residences in the State of Connecticut, 66 of which were privately owned like this one.  He said 

there is a big difference between a public community residence and a private one.  

He said he believes they have a vested special permit and would like to have the 13 people 

approved. 

 

Lou Mazzeo, L&R Realty, said he knows there was letter read from Mr. Meyers, and he has a 

number of letters, (over 25), that are in favor of his application but instead of reading all of 

them he wanted to make them part of meeting and file them in the office.  These letters were 

mailed directly to Lou Mazzeo.  He then read into record his letter addressed to the Planning 

and Zoning Commission, (see attached).  Some of his comments in the letter were about the 

SELF organization and how it helps elderly disabled adults, the residents are over the age of 

fifty years and will not have any impact on the schools, etc.  He also stated they are privately 

owned and would not be tax exempt like the LISA house was.  He said there is professional 

staff on hand 24 hours a day and they are there to provide structure for the residents. He also 

said if anyone was concerned about this he would like for them to visit the Waterbury SELF 

facilities and meet the residents.  He said they (owners of property) have lived in Wolcott for 

many years, have donated time to the community, and will continue to help the town become a 

better place for all of us.   

 

Gina Petrokaitis, Chair on Board of Directors of SELF, and has been involved with SELF for 

over 20 years.  She said this is the geriatric program, not a group home.  She said it is for 

people with a mental health disability.  She said SELF takes the place of family for them, to 

assist them to doctor appointments, shopping, cooking, etc.  She said they have long term staff, 

most who have been there for over 10 years.  She said she appreciates the concerns however it 

is society and mental illness is widespread.  She said there will be little or no change as to what 

was previously there and is asking that the Commission approve this application to give their 

13 residents a quality of life in their later years.   

 

Jo-Ann Law, Program Director for SELF, said she has worked for them for 21 years.  She said 

they currently are housed in two locations in the Bunker Hill section of Waterbury and this 

would be an opportunity to bring them together under one roof. She said they have a 

comprehensive admission process in place by referral only.  She said there are no sex 

offenders, substance abusers or parolees in the program.  She said the residents go to programs 

daily for 6 hours a day.  She said the residents are much older and are not physically able to 

wander the streets.  Mike Bokon asked if they had a monitoring system if someone should walk 

off site and Ms. Law said there is staff on duty all night and they have buzzers on the doors and 



WOLCOTT PLANNING & ZONING 

PUBLIC HEARING AND REGULAR MEETING 

WEDNESDAY, MAY 18, 2016      

TOWN COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 6:30 P.M. 

PAGE 3 of 9  

 

they do hourly checks on the residents.  Ms. Petrokaitis said their job is to provide the residents 

a comfortable and safe environment and most of them tend to isolate as opposed to lashing out. 

 She said they encourage brunches and ask them how their day was, etc.  It was stated that they 

have 2 staff members on at night and between 2-3 staff per shift during the day. Mike Bokon 

asked is the medication locked up and Ms. Law said they are locked up and only the staff has 

access to the office which also contains a locked closet with the medications.   

 

Rita Jamele, RN and Director of Clinical Services with SELF, said her responsibilities are for 

the delivery of the best medical care for the residents.  She assesses and coordinates their 

medical care and will accompany them to doctor appointments if they so wish.  She said she 

provides on-site education during staff orientation and ensures competency for their hire.  She 

assured the community that these are not people that would be out and about without 

assistance.   Cathe Sherman asked what would be the difference between this and a skilled care 

facility.  Ms. Jamele said these residents are really independent, they need supervision and just 

guidance to do things. She said they are capable of doing their own personal care, they take 

their own medicines.  She said she prepares the medicine and the residents then come to her 

and take it and most of them know what the medicines they take look like, the color, etc.   Ms. 

Jamele said a skilled facility means that the residents need medical attention and skilled 

services 24 hours a day / 7 days a week.  She said her residents need the supervision to make 

sure that things are going properly.  She said they have a locked area (for medicines) and none 

of the residents have a history of drug or alcohol abuse.  Mike Bokon asked if the person 

giving the medicines is licensed and Ms. Jamele said she would or a certified med tech.  She 

said she is there many hours a day and may pop in on the night shift and weekends to make 

sure everything is okay.   

 

At this time those residents for the application came forward to express their reason that they 

are in favor of this application.  Brian Smail said he worked for LISA and for SELF and he 

would not have any issue with having the residents of SELF as neighbors.  He said as a 

taxpayer and business owner this should go (be approved) as the town would receive taxes, it 

would not burden the school systems and it is a plus/plus win for the town.  He also stated that 

the town did not receive any taxes when it was under LISA Inc.  Alyssa Taglia came forward in 

favor and stated she began volunteering for SELF and is now on the board.  She said SELF 

provides the elder with the best quality of life and we as a community should be proud of that.  

She said she hopes that the neighbors have faith in SELF and let them prove to them that this is 

an excellent organization and that we will be great neighbors.   

 

At this time those residents that were against this application came forward to express their 

concerns.  The majority of the neighbors had concerns with safety, traffic, parking area, 

emergency vehicles, neighborhood, property values, medicine concerns, roaming of and 

number of residents, etc. Mr. Iacusso and Mr. Rocco both had concerns with the parking lot 

and the fact that this residence has a shared driveway with a residential home.  Mr. Rocco said 

that SELF has been in business a long time and they must be making money and that is what he 



WOLCOTT PLANNING & ZONING 

PUBLIC HEARING AND REGULAR MEETING 

WEDNESDAY, MAY 18, 2016      

TOWN COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 6:30 P.M. 

PAGE 4 of 9  

 

sees behind this whole venture. Mr. Rocco said he does not know if all the deed restrictions 

from 1991 for the Forest Hills Subdivision have been complied with and this is part of that 

subdivision.  Mr. Rocco said he did not know if any of the letters of support, (put on file), are 

from anyone in the neighborhood or are they friends (of the applicants). 

 

Richard D’Angelo came forward and questioned what kind of labeled people would be in the 

house, (mental health, drug dependent, addicts, etc.) and would you want it in your 

neighborhood.   

 

Gilda Burns said she originally had a lot of questions but tonight did ease her mind.  She 

questioned if any of the workers were restraint trained and if any of the residents needed to be 

restrained.  She asked how often the residence would be inspected to be sure they are being 

compliant.   

 

Tammy Couture said she is not a bad person because she does not want a business in her 

neighborhood.  She said she did not know the LISA house was being built when she purchased 

her home.  She said the LISA house girls did go through the school system and there were 

problems with them and now that it has closed lets’ move on and leave it residential. 

 

Esther Zinolli said her backyard adjoins the backyard of SELF and had safety concerns, as did 

others, along with noise, traffic, property values, etc.  Roger Ward said his property also 

bounds with the SELF property and again stressed concerns about this being a business in a 

residential neighborhood. He was concerned about the well being able to sustain the increase of 

residents.  Again, he was concerned with noise, emergency personnel, etc. 

 

Tom Colavecchio stated that when the first group home (LISA) was put up they were all told 

that the home had a certain variance and it would never change. He said the second, more 

important factor, is the number of residents. 

 

Lou Spina said he was moderately inconvenienced with the residents and staff of the LISA 

home.  He said there are multiple inconveniences that are associated with the facility in the 

middle of a residential neighborhood and they are proposing to double the impact by going 

from 7 to 13 residents.  He said they are all against it and they came out 6 months ago, (for 

prior application that was withdrawn), and they are here again.  He said there is an adverse 

impact and there is a need for these facilities but not in the middle of a residential 

neighborhood and to not take the decision lightly.   Rebecca Spina said she is against it due to 

the fact they want to increase it to 13 people.  Also, she stated she had the same reasons of 

concerns as others, such as traffic, safety, fire, police, etc.  She feels there are conflicting 

reports as we hear they are functional and just need direction but then you hear they look older, 

are debilitated, and they will not be roaming around.  She said how can you get up, cook your 

own breakfast, take your own medicines but you are not going to be able to walk around the 

neighborhood.  She said that does sound clear to her and she would like some clarification on 



WOLCOTT PLANNING & ZONING 

PUBLIC HEARING AND REGULAR MEETING 

WEDNESDAY, MAY 18, 2016      

TOWN COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 6:30 P.M. 

PAGE 5 of 9  

 

this.  She said her biggest concern is going to a larger scale (of residents) and how two skilled 

workers can handle 13 patients with mental health issues.  

 

Amy Yost said she is opposed to the 13 residents (that would be housed on the property) and 

also had a concern with the number of personnel overseeing the residents.  She said in the 

school district, in the role that she is in, when she has children that are having an episode, it 

takes like 6 of them to hold down a 35 lb. 5 year old.  So she was concerned with how can two 

adults maintain an adult if there is an episode, and who will care for the other residents during 

that time. Again, she stressed her concerns about property values, as did many other neighbors.  

 

Attorney Bruno said his main rebuttal would be the number of people and the regulation as it 

stands tonight is 7 to 15 and they are asking for 13.  He said the Commission has no discretion 

on that (the number of residents), if they are within the regulations it is an administrative 

decision by the Commission and they would have to have an unusual reason to say 13 is too 

many. He said in reference to the comment on the subdivision regulations, they did not get any 

citations as to anything being wrong with the house as it sits. He said they talked about the 

driveway and that, (he believes), has been approved by the CZEO.   

 

CZEO said no zoning permits have been taken out for work done on the house since (L&R 

Realty) purchased the property.  He said there are no violations on record of anything that 

existed prior to that.  Chairman Mahoney asked about the well situation that a previous person 

brought up and Ron Gambino said he believes the well is 7 gallons a minute and there is a 

huge storage tank inside.   

 

Rita Jamele came forward again to clarify some of the concerns and she reiterated they do not 

have any drug dependent individuals in their program.  She said they do not have behavioral 

adults at this time, they do not restrain but they do have training programs (for the employees). 

She said the residents may shout and get upset but they have not had any physical altercations. 

She said these are older adults, they are calm, and some of them, because of their medical 

history, have more physical disabilities and may walk with a walker, etc.  She said because the 

building is set so far back, the residents would have a hard time walking down the driveway. 

She said most of the residents will go to activities all day (8:30 to 2:00).  She said if any of 

them wanted to leave they could but there is a process that has to be followed.  She said they 

have 5 residents that smoke and there is a designated area for such. Angelo Mastrofrancesco 

questioned the number of staff members on hand and Ms. Jamele said they have 2 to 3 per 

shift, with 2 on during the night. Angelo Mastrofrancesco said if you have 2-3 on staff 

currently on two locations in Waterbury would you have 4-6 staff at the new facility and Ms. 

Jamele said it is staggered.  She said you would have 2-3 in the morning, people to go on 

appointments with them and she usually will bring in another staff member around noon to 

help cover the middle of the day and when they return home from programs (2:00-2:30) they 

have 2-3 more staff members because that is a busy time, when dinner starts, medications, etc.  

Rita Jamele (R.N.) said she is there every day, a couple hours to 4 hours a day.  She said she 



WOLCOTT PLANNING & ZONING 

PUBLIC HEARING AND REGULAR MEETING 

WEDNESDAY, MAY 18, 2016      

TOWN COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 6:30 P.M. 

PAGE 6 of 9  

 

spends around 8 hours between three current locations and she is also there at night sometimes. 

She said the residents are usually in bed by 8:00 p.m.   Cathe Sherman again questioned 

whether there would be substance abusers there, as Ms. Jamele is only talking about the type of 

residents currently there. It was stated they do not have substance abusers there and they have 

specifics for their program before they take them in.  Angelo Mastrofrancesco asked if the 

residents are allowed to go out and smoke on their own and Ms. Jamele said they can go out 

alone but they are constantly doing checks on them.  She said they are inspected at least once a 

year by the Dept. of Health but the health dept. can come in at any time. She said where they 

are currently they have no problems with the neighbors as far as noise and they have only had 

the ambulance there 4 times in the last year, due to medical issues.   

 

Kim Taglia said staffing is mandated by the State and they require two people per shift and 

SELF is overstaffed.  She said the reason they are moving the two homes in Waterbury to 

Wolcott is because another program that is not appropriate for Wolcott is moving into the two 

Waterbury locations.   

 

Lou Mazzeo came up to clarify a few of the issues stated.  He said there are security cameras in 

the home, all doors are buzzed, there is night lighting, etc.  He said the parking is more than 

adequate for what they need.  He said the bedrooms are mandated by the state and they exceed 

what is required.  He said what they did for renovations did not require a zoning permit and 

they did get a permit for the internal changes.  He said they purchased the property last July 

and have done inside renovations and have taken down trees, cleaned up leaves, etc. and the 

place looks much better than before.  He said there was a comment made about the license and 

the license they have is legit and is one of the highest licenses you can acquire.  He also said 

under certain statutes the license does apply (for the application).  He said he understands 

where people are coming from but there is a big misconception here.  He said it started from 

the original meeting with letters being put in people’s mailboxes that stated it would house sex 

offenders and drug addicts.  He said people are classifying those that are less fortunate than we 

are as sex offenders, rapists, whatever, which is not even close to what they will have.  He said 

what happened back then (when the LISA house was there) should have no bearing on what 

they are presenting today as they are making a better place for the people and for that house.  

He said community means more than one or two people in one building that’s why it’s 

classified under community residence.  He said these people have no family, we have family to 

go to at Christmas, Easter and he doesn’t understand how people can be so uncompassionate 

and he is just trying to provide them with a quality of life.  He said everyone here probably has 

a friend or family that has someone who may be handicapped of sorts and how would you like 

it if someone said I don’t want your mother or your father here and to keep that in mind when 

making your decision. 

 

Ed Rocco came forward and said he was not worried about someone’s mother or someone’s 

father, he was worried about 15 mothers’ or fathers’.  He said the letter he received back in 

September said all funding and referrals are received solely by the State of Conn. Dept. of 



WOLCOTT PLANNING & ZONING 

PUBLIC HEARING AND REGULAR MEETING 

WEDNESDAY, MAY 18, 2016      

TOWN COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 6:30 P.M. 

PAGE 7 of 9  

 

Mental Health and Addiction Services and that SELF programs are not licensed by the state or 

any other entity.  He said SELF said the definition of geriatric is 45 and up and he believes it is 

17 yrs. of age and up so if someone should leave or pass away it would leave a vacancy (for 

any age).  He said that letter said they plan to staff the program with 7 full time and 7 part time 

employees which he feels will impact the traffic.  He said the deed restrictions he referred to 

earlier are related to the Forest Hills development from 1991.  He said number one was lots 

should be used for residential purposes only – no building shall be erected until building plans 

were approved by the developer, its successors and assigns. CZEO said we do not enforce deed 

restrictions that is up to the developer of the subdivision.  

 

At 8:37 p.m. Chairman Mahoney called for a 10 minute recess. 

 

Chairman Mahoney called the public hearing back to order at 8:47 p.m. 

 

Angelo Mastrofrancesco said the definition of a community residence states in no case more 

than 15 in any one dwelling who do not receive any special medical care or supervision, but are 

supervised by at least one staff person, he said “it says who do not receive any special care”. 

Attorney Bruno said they don’t receive any special care, yet they need care just like anyone else 

and they get it but there is no special care.  He said these are not people that are under constant 

medical supervision.  Angelo Mastrofrancesco said but they have to have someone give them 

their medicines and Atty. Bruno said that is not medical care that is medical supervision.  

 

Kathleen Colavecchio said her concern was what reassurances do (the neighbors) have that 

once SELF gets in there that they would not change it to some other type of program, other 

than geriatric.  CZEO said the application is a special use permit and this Commission has to 

make sure the criteria in front of them and what the regulations state, is met.  He said that it 

(the regulation) says 7 to 15 residents are allowed but it doesn’t mean because they ask for 15 

we give them 15.  The Commission has to look at everything, the value of the homes, will it 

affect the residential area, etc. and if they ever have to change the use they would have to come 

before the Commission again.  CZEO said that if the Commission felt that the information in 

front of them is adequate or if they want to entertain any questions that came before us tonight 

they can.  He said we can certainly entertain any letters from the professionals, such as CZEO, 

Town Attorney, Fire Marshal, etc. on anything that was discussed tonight.   

 

At this time there were no more comments from the Public or the Commission and Chairman 

Mahoney closed the public hearing on application #16-532 at 8:55 p.m. 

 

REGULAR MEETING 

 

At 8:56 p.m. Chairman Mahoney called the Regular Meeting to order.  (Attendance was taken 

and it was the same as listed above under Public Hearing). 

 



WOLCOTT PLANNING & ZONING 

PUBLIC HEARING AND REGULAR MEETING 

WEDNESDAY, MAY 18, 2016      

TOWN COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 6:30 P.M. 

PAGE 8 of 9  

 

PUBLIC REQUESTS 

 

There were no Public Requests at this time. 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

Upon MOTION by Mike Bokon, seconded by Chris Edquist, it was unanimously voted to 

APPROVE the minutes from the 5/4/2016 Public Hearing and Regular Meeting. 

 

APPROVAL OF BILLS 

 

There were no bills at this time.  

 

CORRESPONDENCES 

 

Correspondences were read under Public Hearing Meeting. 

 

SUBCOMMITTEE REPORTS 

 

There were no Subcommittee Reports at this time.   

 

OLD BUSINESS   

 

1. #16-532 L&R Realty – Special Use Permit for a Community Residence at 159 Old 

Bound Line Rd. 

 

Chairman Mahoney said with all the information (received tonight) we should table this until 

the next meeting so everyone has a chance to go over it.   He said if anyone had any questions 

they should contact the Town Attorney or the CZEO. 

 

Upon MOTION by Cathe Sherman, seconded by Angelo Mastrofrancesco, it was unanimously 

voted to TABLE #16-532 L&R Realty – Special Use Permit for a Community Residence at 

159 Old Bound Line Rd. to the June 1, 2016 meeting at 6:30 p.m. in the Council Chambers. 

  

NEW BUSINESS 

 

1. #16-536 Pat Lerz – Site Plan for a 60’ x 80’ building for warehousing at 1139 

Wolcott Rd.  

 

CZEO said this was an application that was approved in 2006 and the applicant is reapplying 

for a smaller building at this time.  He said that Inland Wetlands has signed off already with 

conditions.  He said he sees no issue with the site plan and he read the Inland Wetlands 



WOLCOTT PLANNING & ZONING 

PUBLIC HEARING AND REGULAR MEETING 

WEDNESDAY, MAY 18, 2016      

TOWN COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 6:30 P.M. 

PAGE 9 of 9  

 

conditions, (see attached).  Cathe Sherman asked the CZEO if the Commission can waive the 

need for architecturals because the building is so far back (off Rte. 69) and he said correct.  

CZEO said certainly he can ask for it if they want to see it, it is a 3 bay garage and Chairman 

Mahoney said you are not going to see it (from the road).  Angelo Mastrofrancesco went out to 

the site and said it must be way back there because he did not see where it was going to be put.  

 

Upon MOTION by Angelo Mastrofrancesco, seconded by Chris Edquist, it was unanimously 

voted to ACCEPT FOR REVIEW and APPROVED #16-536 Pat Lerz – Suite Plan for a 60’ 

x 80’ building for warehousing at 1139 Wolcott Rd., per conditions set by Inland Wetlands and 

a proper bond be in place set by CZEO.  (Chairman Mahoney recused himself as he works for 

applicant). 

 

2. #16-537 North American Homes – Special Use Permit for a 20’ x 40 Detached 

Garage at 267 Bound Line Rd.   

 
Upon MOTION by Cathe Sherman, seconded by Mike Bokon, it was unanimously voted to 

ACCEPT FOR REVIEW #16-537 North American Homes – Special Use Permit for a 20’ x 40’ 

detached garage at 267 Bound Line Rd., and SCHEDULED a Public Hearing for June 1, 2016 at 

6:30 p.m. in the Council Chambers.    

 

CERTIFIED ZONING ENFORCEMENT OFFICER’S REPORT 

 

There was no CZEO report at this time.   

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

There was no Executive Session at this time.  

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

Upon MOTION by Chris Edquist, seconded by Cathe Sherman, it was unanimously voted to 

ADJOURN the Regular Meeting at 9:06 p.m.  

 

APPROVED: 

 

 

_____________________________  _______________________________ 

Raymond Mahoney, Jr., Chairman                  Edna Henderson, Recording Secretary 

Planning & Zoning Commission                     Planning & Zoning Commission 


